UNITED STATES
DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY
WASHINGTON 25, D. C.

December 5, 1950

Cobb and Weissbrodt
1822 Jefferson Place, N.W.
Washington 6, D. C.
Gentlemen:
The changes suggested in your letter of
December 4 have been made in the transcript of the

hearing with respect to Miss Ruth Schmidt.

Very truly yours,

Mastin G. White, Chairman
2

Interior Department Loyalty Board




December L, 1950

Mr. Mastin 0. White, Chaimman
Interiar Department Loyalty Board
Department of the Interior
Office of the Secretary
Yashington 25, D. €.

Dear Mr. Thite:

Thie will acknowledre receipt of your letter of Novembe: 21,
1950, addressed to ¥iss Ruth Schmidt at this address ang forwarding a
copy of the trenscript of the hearing held on October 25, 1950, in
Miss Schmidt's case.

On bﬁ.lﬂlf O.L‘ a{lSS ﬁC_n}\.t

I wish to note the following sugpested
corrections for the transeript:

31, line 8t The record should show that Miss Schmidt dic not have
any list with her at the hearing,

page 31, 1ine 12: "Blue Cross" should read ! Croup Health". At the
time of the hearing Miss Schmidt was not & member of Blue Cross.
Ehe joined the Oroup Health Associ lation, Inc., about 19,8 and
deopped her membership in Blue Cross at that time.

e 38, line 31 Add "for themselves" after Tout®.

page 39, line 20t Delete the period after “sho w", change initial
capital 1 in "In" to a sm&il ;Ltb‘f; insert a per i

od after "yeart
and capitalize the "s" in "she'

I thank you for your courtesy in this matter.
Sincerely,

"COBB AND YEISSBRODT

BY:
DAVID COBB



UNITED STATES
DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY

NOV 2! 1950

WASHINGTON 25, D. C.

Registered Mail
Return Receipt Reguested

Personal and Confidential

Migs Ruth Anna Marie Schmidt
C/o Cobb and Weissbrodt

1822 Jefferszon Place, N, W,
Washington 6, D, C.

My dear Miss Schmidt:

In accordance with your request of October 25 there is
transmitted herewith a copy of the transeript of a hearing held

by the Interior Department Loyalty Board.

Sincerely yours,

Vg//

Mastin G. White, Chairman
Interior Department
Loyalty Board

/

Enclosgure




HEARING
held by the
INTERIOR DEPARTMENT LOYALTY BOARD

October 25, 1950 = 10100 a.m., Room 6352

Present; Mastin G. ¥hite, Chairman
Dan H. Wheeler, Member
Mrs. J. Atwood Meulding, Member
E. L, Compton, Secretary
Ruth Anna Marie Schmidt
David Cobb (Counsel for Miss Schmidt)

Witnessess Ruth Schmidt
Marie Siegrist
Jean Berdan
Alfred J. Bodenlos
Frank C. Wh
Marjorie Ho

itmore, Jr.

1
[T o

A4




Hesring, #ednesday, October =25, 1950

’ LT s 34 L4 2
Prapents Mastin G, A airman
Pen H, wWheeler, b 3 g
L !’3. -j- REWOO0U Ty I R LI p 4 r
o 'ru L‘., NG tf.!“l, eret v
Rut! nna Marie Schmicy
wiq At v 3
- . C '_b - .

CHATRMANg The Interior Department Loyally Sosrc has

- - a4 - N
met this morning ior

cordance with her request, an op ortunit: { rd in connection
sith charyes f possible plovalt £ the Govern v 4 y the

understanc-

rson before the boards In that comnection, it 1is

ing that she has asked geveral persons to SDDEAY before the board,

end the board will be glad to hear them et such time as Miss Schmidt

or her counsel may wish to bring them before the boarde



CHATRMAN: For the benefit of 8ll pressnt, I shall now

ehargost

"lugust 15, 1950

"Parsonel anéd Confidential

]

"Memorandum

"Tos Buth Anna Maris Schmidt
1817 North Rhodes 5%,
Arlington, Virginis

eeretery, Interior Densrtment Loyalty Board

Charges invelving possible dia yalty to the United
states

"l. This is a notice of
"2. You are notified tha
i

invelving possible isloyalty
macde against vous

Bfou have been a n
sympathetically sssoclated with 1 hington
hesoclation, vhich has been des ated by fﬁn' Lorne; X
as being vithin the purview of par: ph "i", section 2, part V,
of Executive Order 9835, In this connaction, it is reported thats

"(s) Tou vere Chairmsn of & meeting of the ashington
Book Shop fssoclation on May 23, 1946, at which Edwin €. Randall
Sspoke-on the 'Politieal Implications of iAtomle En rgyt.

"(b) You were in attendance at forum spongored by
the shington Book Shop Assoclation at the Phyllis Yheatley

y

Aanex of the YWCA on Oectober by 1947,

"(¢) A copy of the ¥ ahington Book Shop :
publicaticn "The Book Shopper! for October 1947 und r the
Meet the Board! liste the name of Ruth schmidt, Fublic!
Director for the Forum Committeec.




u(d) You were in attendance et & lecture of the
waahington Book Shop Aasscciation on March 21, 1948, at the
aghington Bookshop,

"(e) You attended meetings of the ¥ashingten Book
Shop fAseoeclation on January 2, 1949, January 30, 1949,
Maroh 27, 1949, and October 28, 1949.

%(f) You were mctive in the Vashington Book Shop
Assoelation up until January, 1950, having been chairmen of
several committees of the Washington Book Shop Assoclation
and having introduced speakers at severzl importsnt lecture
neetings.

3% TYou mey snpweér this ocharge in wri ngy under

oath or affirmation, within fourteen (14) days
the cdate on which this notiece is received

L7 £, in addition, you desire t & ring on
the charge be held bafore a Loyelty Hoard of this Dep rtmant,
you may submit such & request in writing within fourteen (14)
calendar days after this notlce is received by -

"S5¢ In the event that & he :
agcordance with paragraph 4 above, you may app : _
Loyslty Board personslly, you muy be accompanied by counsel
or other reprasentative of your own choosing, and you may
present evidence on your own behalf through witnesses or by
affidavits.

"G, 1 be carried without & change in your
|

cuty and pay status p ing & determinaticn by ¢l

"7 The possible removal sction will not becoms efe
fective in less than thirty (30) calendar dave from the cate of
the receipt of this notice by you.

8« This notice is eent you in zeccordance with
Executive Order 9835 of Mareh 21, 1947 (12 ¥, R. 1935);
Order No., 2308, issued by the Secretary of the Interior on
Mereh 29, 19473 Order No. 2459, issued by the Secretapry of the
Interior on Aupust 13, 19483 regulations issued by the Loyalty
Review Board of the Civil Service Commission effective Decem-
ber 17, 1947, revised through December 17, 1948 (5 CFR 200.1--
:‘)006; 15 F. R, ”}61); Seetion 9:.5 of the Hatoch Act (5 T.'\.-;o’
1946 sd., Suppe II secs 118J); and Seotion 14 of the Veterans
Preference Act of 1944."

Loyalty Botrd,



CHAIRMANS I shall now resd Miss Schmidt!s

anpwer to the
¢h I‘C@S.

MR, CO:SB' -"{r'. C}:!;..iman, I .ﬁi;‘.‘;it QJi'}t out thet Mis

wedw 4-.:5

Schmidt's ansver is contained in two itemsi First, her letter of

fugust 10 and, second, her formal answer to the charges.,

CHAIRMAN: I shall recd the answer to

bh ver to the interrogatories

and also the answer to the ¢harges. Sehmidt's

august 10, 1950,

Avgust 15945, '

stter of complain
shington during

i aturbad ‘.'fIAJ' thi ISETaga"

itmont they reeeived in

that such 2 situstion was bad

ticularly when we were waglng a war
gainst diserimination. In 1945,

I hepgpened to read Richard Wright's BLACK
censed me to the point of nting to
about it, I had heard of the Bookshko
I may have pieked up in the store,
the book stores along 17th Street on the vay to the Virginies
buses on K Street. As ave slways approved of cooperastives
I am & namber of Group Health, before that the Blue C

at ti Cross,
subseribe to Consumer Reports, and have some insurance with the
Farm Bureau Mutusl company.), I decided %o Joln this cooperative
bookshop that cleimed to be interracisls I had more time, now




that the wvar had ended, cnd was Intevested in starting a
record colleetion, possibly buying a few books == and in
finding out about the cultural activities in art snd litere-
ature mentioned in the folder, particularly &s they emphasized
that the activitisa vwere on a&n interracisl basls,

"The attached letter accounts for my activities
after Joining, After I wrote the letter in Jenuary 1946,
I suppose I recelved notices of the forums, However, at
his time; the winter and spring of 1946, z2long with most
other solentists, I was very mch interested in atomic
anergy croblems, I had become & member of the “ashington
Assoclation of Sclentists, which had heen spontaneously
formed at this time, and vwas very much concerned with atomie
energy. 7This group was vigorously supporting the MeMahon bill

hen before Congress, snd later became lawe, I
executive board of the Yashington

time, and in

Guesved une

irmen

that time, or rather
forum in the spring of 1946, to
my recollecti 1

. )
R 18

&8 pratty we occupled
thesis, &3 well as working, and ¢ld not
any othsr activities,

4
R |
&4

*In February of 1947, I linished the first draft of
ny thesls, and again hsad more time, and probably started going
to forums again, In any event, when, in ipr 97, 1 vas
asked 1f I would be willing to sasrve on the executive board of
the Bookshop a8 & replacement until elections in the summer, I
sald I woulds I was curious to see how 2 cooperative organiza=-
tion worked, it seemed like 1t would be mn interesting experience,
and I really would be doing something positive in an active intere
racial group.




AT was customary, 28 I reeall, lor nombers of the
voard to act 8 chairmen of the different conmittees, and I
inherited the forum committee. This committee worked with
the Book committee in helping o select speakers and obtaln
places for forums, »no condueted a poll of the membership %
sgoertain subjects in which they were interested %o s-rve &8
partial gulde i{n arranging subsequent book reviews and forums,
ften the chairman of the forum committee had to introduce the
the forums, In all, 1 served on the bhoard for four
- 1 was not nominated for aleetion to the next board.
es I was not on the next board, I ceased O ha ehelrmen of
the forum committee. After helping the new chalrman for 8 few
meatings, 1 ceased toking & part in the work of the committee,
As & matter of fact, ny anly association with » organizeticon
from the full of 1947 on was golely that )
and records, and occasional spsctator
e erts, science end litsrature,

"ITn Cecembe

we an organization

o

A0 B8 WaD

non-politiesl

iington communlty

#h iare B !
lenge or even indlc

sas communist-dominated, or in afy Way

or the Communist P l‘ty. 10 :

me, that had they been evident, 1 would

organization as soon &S I became aware of such tendenclies,

a short time I had attended axecutive board meetings, whore policy

was determined, and at no time did I observe any improper,

unimerican, or subverslve acbivitys On the conirary, at the

hoard mestings I attended, I recall that the board was eoncerned

/Ath the operation of the store, nd its related sctivities, such

as selsetion of books, and how o ot suthors to spesk, preferably

for nothingi how to meke money on forumsj how to {ind meeting

places at & nominsl cost that both Negroes anc +hites could attend,

and how to supply books for @ lending library for colorec cafeteria

WOTKOT S

#Immedistely fellowing the listing of the Bookshop, ) §
made & point of going to the store and asking one of the clerka




for 4 copy of the constitution., I carefully read 1% and
saw nothing that accounted to me for the listing of what
seemed to me to be & non-political, culturel cooperative,
as subversive, I attended the next mesting, It wvag a
membership meeting, and had as 1ts main topie 2 talk on

the races of mankind, Agsin, as In the past, there was
nothing said or done &t that mssting vhich I could possitly
intorpret as subversive and communistic.

"During the next vear, as a spectator, I sttended
oceasionally, not more than half & dozen times, other forums
of a similer nature, and I found, us befors, there wis nothing
subversive or comunistic ebout them, However, they were not
holding meetings on subjects in which I was particularly
interested, and my attendanee slackened, and aboul a year or so
ago I stopped going altogether. Attencance &t inase ublie

forums and a few purchases of books anc records conastituted

my only relationship to the Bookshop folloving the ublication

of the 1ist. (Prior to the listing, as I have heretofore
explained, I had become inactive in the orga ntion,) Oaversl

months ago I was notified by mall that U Bookshop wWaS no
'}

longer in existence,"

T v
" Vel ‘r'

( Sgd «) HRuth |

Ruth A. M.

"Ruth A, M. Schmidt appesred before
gwears on her oath to the sbove.

(82d,) Donsld D. Voorhees /S E A LJ
Notary Publie
Comm, explres 10/14/50"

CHAIRMANS The mnswer to the charges is as follows
"I, Rauth Anna Marie Schmidt, of 1817 Nerth Rhodes
Street, Arlington, Virginie, being first culy sworn, <o dapose

and say as followss

#1, I have been a member of and sympathetically
associated with the Washington Bookshop Asscelation.




w2, 1 sutmitted to the Interior Department Loyalty
Board, in & letter under dste of hugust 10, 19504 & statement of
my essociations with the Washington Bookshop Associatiom, which
statement ves accurate 4o the full extent of wmy recollection &8
of the date of its preperations

u3, Since August 10, 1950, I have checked the informe=
tion contained in my August 10 statemant sgainst all the reacords
that I have been able to find bearing upon ®y sgsocietion with
the Washington Bookshop Associati-n and have found thet these
records are econsistent with my August 10 statement with one
exception onlye The first sentence in tho last parsgraph of my
Mpust 10 atatement roadss

“puring the next year, 88 @ spectator, 1
occasionally, not more than half & dosen
forums of & similar nature, anc, I found,
there was nothing subversive or communistic abo

"My ecalendar records show the
may have attended in total Tifteen,
sponsored by the Weshington Booksnop hssocl
mey have attended in total, seven, =RC nossibly aight, such
meetings, Most of these meelings, seventeen, were ol Sunday
avening. Of these sundey meetings, probably &lmost all were
a part of a regular biweekly nevs reporting series conducted by
Alfred Henley. The regular Bookshop meetings were not h 1d on

Sundayse In making my original estimate of Washington DODRIHE
mestings attended tn 1948, I had forgotten the tende

many of the Hlenley naews reportss With
satinfied thet my AU ast 10 statement I
the extent of my assoclations with the

nyith respect to my ealencar records, it
{3 my practice to paxe notations on my calendar of
to which I intend 1o gO. often these notaticns are made
in advence. Sometimes they &re made on the ssme day uho
plen 10 €0 Later, if 1 do mot g0 to the event, I generally
eross the event of f my calendars Neturally, there are oec si-ms
1 know, when 1 fall to cross the event of f my calendar even
though 1 did not gos Also, there may be & fev yecaalons when
1 have attended svents not marked on my calendar, In my sxperi-
ance the latter occurrences .re much rarer thean the former, S0
that I am rezsonably certain that there were few, Lf any, RBookshop




meetings that I attended that &re not marked on my calendar,

arid

w

here sre probably marked on my calendar at least a few

-

meetings that I d@id not attend,

®A., As stated in the last sentence of the firat

partial \avéyrnmh on page 2 of my August 10 statemsnt, I vas

Yy

t‘a Cheiyman of & Forum meeting on Atomic Fnergy held by the

redue

Buokshops = This meeting was held at the rhyllis
YWCA on GF ' _'5’ ‘.'"-‘A:.,), in the eve nt:".-i_f. I had sarlier
ted ths Vashington Bookshop AﬂﬁuCi?*iFn to holé a Forum

nu_tang on the subjeet of $fﬁmic Enargys My suggestion was

=00

Tk
JPAY

p; by the Weshington Bockshop Assoelation, I recall
r

H‘ut I ade gome of the arrangements for this Forums I he

smong my files one page of
sumnarined the arrang
eting. By H“y 7, the sp .
gen uul cteds I do not reca
I re
al Coomittee on Atomic

dtd not

nse sympathetic

mmunism or in any way cis w1l to our furm of Government.
! ] L 1 1 |

~acollection n

q'r ragson

ceurate, nothing

foance took plac introduced Mre
time &nd then the Forum was open 10
ns B ! that 1 was nervous
£ this nmeeting, since had not previously

Qecasion 0i
before any Bookshop mestinge My notes of May 7, 1946,

that coples of zn Acheson Recort on Atomic Enasrgy were

».wtrihutad with admissions to the meeting.




"5¢ I have a copy of the October 1947 BOCKSHOPPER and
accordingly am sble to confirm that I am listed in that issue as
Publicity Director of the Forum Committees A8 I stated (n my
hugust 10 stetement, after I ceased, in July 1947, to be ehairmsn
of the Forum Committee, I oontinued thersafter for o faw neetings
10 #881s5% my successor, the new Chairman of the Forum Commt t1~e.
My ealondar records show enly two such later m setings with tdﬁ
new Chairmen, Despite the report in the BOOKSHOPPER that T
Publicity Director, I do not beliave ti VAs ever elected 20
any office on the new Forum Cormittes or that ny formal eetion
wes aver taken in r¥1 11 n Lc the assistance th: gave the
new Chairman of the The Torum Committee funetioned
very informally while I wns the airm ¢ belleve that th:
same practice probably continued under
unchJJar. It s my w:in’-n, therafor
Publicity Direetor to the Forum Commi
tously for the purpose of acknovledg
npsistance that I had glven to the
mittee, The '35'-Punce that I gave
period of chalrmenship wes not,

mblicity, The only assistance that
Chairman was that I met #ith

ions

ort, unde

celendar records
evening Weshington hoj
» no particulsr recollectim of ¢
i 3 one of & saries of lunv
dy 'Detween the Linea!.
aﬂry on evsry cther Sunday
I belleve these meeting: ;
“éﬁ, and ccntinued throughout uwut of tha ar and
t of 1949« Alfred Henley, in 1ﬁ1 ave
good CC\J.A'Lt‘ of the news and I smjoyed ":i:’- 'i*_- ‘.t'-':-.f:n the
telks. Mr. Henley undoubtedly interspersed his opinicna
ageount of the news. I wap never swere that he favored
Communisn or the Communist Party and am C‘.‘“! id rf}t &t
rest in his talks arose out of the manner of his prosynta-
tion of the news and the items of news which he selected to talk
abouts




"Of the total of epproximately twenty-five Bookshop
meetings that I may have attended according to my calendar
records, in 1948 and 1949, my calendar records show that sevene
teen vere Sundsy meetings. It is probable that most of these
Sunday meetings were Alfred Henley news reports. Uafortunately,
my records, vhich are merely brief notes made upon my cclendar,
shov only & notation of a Bookshop meeting and do not indlcate
the subjeet of the meeting, I am uneble to know precisely how
meny of the Sunday mestings that I atiended were /1fred Henley
newp reports, but belicve that almost cll were his talks,

"7. My calendar records confirm that T probably
attended Sunday evenlng Washington Sookshop meetings on Jamie
ary 2, January 30, and Mareh 27, 1949. I have no specific recol-
lections of any of these meetings und no way of knowing vhether
or not these wers Al{red Henley "Between the Lines' lactures,

I believe that they probably veres.

"My records also confirm that I attended
Bookshop meeting on Fridey evening, Octeber 28, on
of Atomie Fnergye I recall that I attended because
to learn what would be said on that subject and olso
knew that Alfred Henley wap to be the speaker and
would glive a good talks It 48 my recollection th
not informative and was confined for % )
discusaion of atomic phynies, I cam
that it was a poor meeting, Howe
ocourred at t meeting whiech conlc

&3
wil
disloyalty to our Covarnments

"8, I was not eetive in the Washington Bookshop
until Jenuary 1950%, though I did hold a 'life membersh
the Bockshop whieh I have never resisned, Under :
28, 1950, I received & letiter from the Board of T:
Bookshop acdvising me that the Bookshop mombership
held on February 22, had voted to close the Bookshop
attend the February 22, 1950, memberahip meeting.

"I ha presant recollection of the last membership
meeting that I attended of the Washington Bookshops I recall
that shortly after the publieation of the Attormey General's
1ist in December, 1947, I attended & regular Bookshep membership
meoting to learn whet if anything, the Bookshop proposed to do
with respect to its being lieted, Ny calendar records place this
meeting on Friday, Januiry 9, 1948. My calendar shows that I may




on
10/8

have attended enother membership meeting
d' LiTQe

1948, and another on Friday, October 8,
record is correct, the October 8, 1948, meeting wa

Y

hich eny Bookshop Musiness

-

Bookshop meeting at
that I attendead.

hip meetings
recollect, featured

. s P
iy removed from BSooksk

the Forum Committee ab four months (Apri
On one ocecasion, I took charge of entertainm
Booksh D "j,c:';ic ( § 1947 A committes maoo
with me on this assipgnmer by he no r

such committee.

"As stated in my August 10 statement, I

to become & member of the Board of Trustees of the Bookshop in
April 1947, and shortly thereafter was given the position of
Chairman of the Forum Committee. I wes mever elected to either
the Board or the chairmanship of the Forum Committee, Mine was
an interim sppointment to the Board, made, I prssume, because
some former Foard mamber had dropped oute The only explanaticn
that I can give for my appointment is thet some persons on the




e
¥
»

poard wore plesused by the way I conducted the Forum on Atomic
Energy eand had for that reason suggested that I would make &
suitable replacement on the Boerd pending s new slasection to
be held in July. 1In July, I declined to be nominated for
election to the Board of Trustees because I felt that I did
not want to devote any more of my time to that task.

"10: I introduced speakers at Vashington Bookshop

3
Asgoclation meetings on the following cecasiones

"May 23, 1946 Atomic Energy Forum. I was Chairman and

duced Mr, Randz=1ll,

Bipril 1647 to about mid-July 19473
apegkers or chairmen at Forum mocetings
of the Forum Committee, '

these occoaslons,

I attended alk on art given by Mr
‘ et merely becsuse I was interested in
and had read of the meeting in the BOOK:HOPPIR e ettendenge

8 poor and there was no Chairman presan repared to introduce
Mr. Butterly. Accerdingly, fesling embarrassed Mr, Putterly,
I introduced him to the group with & very few and inadequate
remarks wvhich I drew from information give the Tly eover of
his hook.

"Henlev Sunday Evening: I recall that on one of Alfred Henlayl's
sunday evening news talks no Chairmen wes present to introduce
Mr. Henley as was customary, I opened that meseting with 2 short
introduetion., This ocecazicn, like the Butterly oeccasion, was the
consequence of nmy voluntesring at the last moment to svold embire
to the speaker, I am unable to place the date of the
r Henley Sunday evening.

"1l, My August 10 statement sets forth my reason for
interest end sympathy for the Washington Bookchop Assoelation, 1
approved of a program of inter-racizl social and cultural asectivity
in Vashington and bellieved this to be the major contribution of the
Bookshop, not offered by any other group of which I was awere,
Prior to the listing by the Attorney General, I had never thought
that the Bookshop might be eontrolled by Communipgts, or Communist




yympathizers, or be advocating Communist programs, After the
Bookshop listing was published, I naturally re-sxamined in my
mind my brief experience on the Board of Trustees of the
Bookshop. I was unable to recall any incidents of undemocratic
procedures, I also was not awure of any effort to impose a
Comeunist line upon Bookshop memberss 1 had not know sny pere
son on the Hoard, or otherwise active in the Bookshop, whom I
had any resson to kmow or belleve was a Communist, had only
one friend active in the Bookshop vhom I knew reas
Marie Slegrists I was and am fully confident that
paither a Communist nor sympethetie to the Communist
Marie was a member of the Bookshop Bos
invited to join., She becan: o Cl
the July 1947 elections. I had
discussed many topics with her
confident that she would not

the Bookshop was con
Communista., I decided that 1 would not
ship' on agcount of the Attormey Generalt's

i 3 . §

would contimie to take advantage of vwhat 1l
banefits of my memi '

participate

though this

bhat I

vole

"Subseribed and 8w
gnd for the PDistrict

15? E A j;7 *(3gd.) Eleanor Dowvming

Hotary Publie
"My Commission Expires




CHATRMAN: The board will now be glac to hear testinony

fyom Miss Schmidt or from such witnesses as she mey c¢nre to bring

before the bosrd. Since the charges relate only to membership in
the Weshington Book Shop Asseeiatlon and activities connected with
the Association, it seems appropriste %o 1imit the testinmc
those subjects, plus any testimony from character
Migs Schmidt may wish to introduce Lo the bouerd.
to call as your first witness?

MR, COBBs Miss Schmidt.

PESTIMONY OF RUTH SCHMIDT (Miss Schmidt was sworn
«8 & witness by the Chairman.

CHAIRMANS Will you
MR, COEDs
nsver a very complete,

ment of the facts, and we stated in sutmitting
the ansvwer in itselfl wer satlsfactory to the
any request for =

My principal purpose, and I suppose the board's interast
in this hearing, would be %0 question Miss Schmidt on her snswer,
rather than for her to go through the direct testimony again as has
been read by the Chalrman. Personally, I would like to ask you tvo
questionss

First, Miss Schmidt, are there any modifications, correc-

tions or additions to these statements as they have been read?

M158 SCHMIDTs No, sir.

15




Mi, COBBs Tecond, are you elear in your mind, as near
as you can be, about the last meeting you attended as sponsored by

the Vashington Book Shop?

MISS SCHMIDT: As far as I recall and =3 far as going

through my records, that October meetling mentioned here in 1949 on
atomie energy wes the last one I went to, It was the October 28th
meeting on the subject of atomie energy, on page 7 of the statenent,
the last meeting that I have sny recollsction of attending,
MR, COBBs Miss Schmidt, the only other thing I think you
might eénlarge on was your attitude towards the Bookshop after it vasg
listed, and your retson for continuing menmbershi
MISS SCHMIDTs I imagine I was quite disturbed at the time

went over in my mind the reascns why I wee disturbed for the

of interracicl, cultural activity of which I epproved and I

that 1% was & good educational programe. I hadn't geen a

in it to educate people toward one line of thinicidng, politlecelly, or
nything like thats I had been on the board for a while and I hadn't
geen any evidence there of people I would call Communistss I knew

wvhat thelr programs were snd I knew that financially they were not

very well off, it the time I was on the board they had to lessen

employees' working time beeause they didn't have adequate income.

I knew that Miss Siegriat wasn't & Communist, and she was chairman

16




of the board at this time, I had gone to the store and read the
constitution and had not seen in the coustitution enything I would

construe as subversive, and the store had placed san ad in the VWashe

ington Post denylng that they were subversive and requesting e heare

ing., Then I went to the next meeting and decided that perhaps some
mistake nad been made In the listing and I'd Find out whatever
nearing was, and if they found it
would feel that I wes justified in my concl
id not resign, It wasn't & matter of renewing my
ad already paild the life momborship--
dicn't think that I was disloyals A lifetime mombarshi
wes not an evidence of disloyalty to the Government,
CHAIRMAN; It was not conelusive svicdence,
MISS8 SCHMIDT: Then I was notified in J
had been cleared. I felt 1 hadntt made

he mambarship. I was eleared and that supported my

&

1
¥

In January of this year the issue came up again when I
to fi1ll out clearance papers for possible work with the Atomic Energy
Commissions I filled ocut the pepers, indiceting that I was a member
of the Bookshop. For that reason, the security officer of the organi-
sation Shought I would probably not be clesred by the Atomie Energy

Commission, At that time I discussed this thing with people because

it bothored me. I didn't 1like this thought that I was a security risk,




but I could see that the organization had nothing else to do because

that was the practice. Resipgning at this time would have been silly.

Cveryone knew I was in the Bookshop. Resigning would mot have done
the Government any good and wouldn't have dons me any good. There
wa® no charge against me. There was nothing I could arpue about.
Thare was no sense--l am still & member, but I received rotice it
fan't in existence any more.

MR, COBBy Miss Schmidt has with he
in developing the statements which she f{led

to be fully examined on the answer, I

address such questions or examination as may

CHAIRMANS  Very well.
would li:e to &sk Miss Schmidt, and

when you jolned the |
elation in 1945, had you heard of a difficulty that
experienced in 1941, I believe wag, with the Cooperative
shington, at which time churges were made that the Book

Communist dominated and, as a result of the controversy, the
elther vithdrev from the Leapgue or vas dismissed from 1t?

MISS SCHMIDT: This 18 the first time I have haard it

CHAIRMANS At the time when you joined in 1945, had you
heard of a2 listing of the Book Shop by Attorney Geneoral Biddle ia 1543

a8 subversive for the purposes of Executive Order No. 93007




MIS3 GCHMIDTs WMo, airy T had note This is the Pirst tinme

I heve heard of this.

CHAIRMANG The first listing of the Book shop &8 a Communist

front or a subvsrsive organization or anything of that sort of whieh
you were aware was the Attornmey Genersl's listing in 10477

MISS SCHMIDTs Yes, sir; I didn't know there had been
listing in 1943,

CHAIRMANS And you had

MISS SCHMIDTs I don't

while you w
he Dookshop with

TP

SCHMIDTs I would ju:

lerable freque

LA T e > AR N %
Gilal i'-f.'“"\-’\'l't 5 ¢ JOU QQ3eTvYe

Naturally,
you obscrve the
w Masses?
presume 1t ms
you observe The
168 SCHMIDT: I didn't notice any

éisplayed for sale at the Bookshop, They had a magezine rack at the
front of the store, and they had several monthly or maybe weekly
perlodicsls for sale, and there were seversl kinds of public affairs

pamphlets,




CHAIRMANG I am easking about The New Masses.

MISS SCHMIOTs I would only notice 1n passing.

CHAIRMANS Did you notiece it in paasing?

MISS SCHMIDTs I assume that I must have, It wouldn't mean
anything particularly to me that there would be The New liasses thare.

MR. VHEELERs I'd like s categorieal answer to

CHAIRMAN: Did you ever observe The New Masses
sale &t the Washington Book Shop?

MISS SCHMIDTs Yes, I-- Yes, sir.

CHAIRMANG Did you also observe reports or publications
relating to the American Youth Congress displayed for sale or distri-
bution?

I vouldn't know.
don't ramcmber that?

MISS SCHMIDTs I don't know what

n Congreas &ra.

CHAIRMAN: Did you obs e publical ions or literature of
the Ameriean Pe: Mobiligation clsplay for sale or dlastributio
there?

I would
the others I don't kmow what their particular p blicationg would be.
CHAIRMANs Did you ever observe any Communist literature

other then The New Masses displayed for sale or distribution there?




MISE SCHMIDT: They had all kinds of litersture on. labor;
on seience, on socidlism all on one shelf, ' Any particuler magazine
I couldn't ¢ite, but I Xnow there were all different types of ¥ism®
books on pale there,

CHAIRMAN: Did you observe any literature or publications
of the Demoerstie Party, such &s the Demoeratie Digest, or sny publi-
cations or literature of the Republican Perty at the Book Shop?

MISE SCHMIDT: I wouldn't know.

CHAIRMANG It didn't seem significant to you that they had
Commuanist Farty publicationsg but ¢idn't heve publications of other
political parties? You attached no signillcance to that?

MISS 3CHMIDT: I never roeparded any of these publications

as Communist Party publications,

YISAT

rET NS ey
LD &

$§ Well, I found out, As far =s I was concerned,

it was a magezine.

ct+
2
v g
1
e

CHATJRMENs When did you find 1t being a Communist
MISS SCHMIDT3 I presume &ll during this reecent furor, during
118 past five years or so.
CHAIRMAN: You didn't know it was a Commnist publication

in 19457



MISS SCHMIDT: I can't say--during the past five years, I

porhaps plcked it up. As to the significance of Communlst Party
literature there, I attached no significance to 1t. It vas all on
the same shelf with Soeialist, labor union, and trade unicn reports
and booklets,

CHAIRMAN: Mr, Wheeler, are there any questions?

MR, VHEELER: Your answer of August 10, as well as what you
say on August 29, do you adopt both of these answers under your oath,
as was administered to you here, as your statement In answver to t
charges?

MISS SCHMIDTs I think I sald so.

MR, WHEELFR: What I want to know ise-my copy of one of
these doesn't carry an oath. I want to Mmow if these are offered
under your present oath,

CHAIRMAN: Both were sctually sworn to., That is shown on
the originals of the two documents.

MR, COBBs Ve will submit them this morning under oath,

CHAIRMANs Yes, I understand that,

MR, WHEELERs In ansver to the questions, Miss Schmidt adopts
her present—-

MR. COBB: Just as though she read both the August 10 statee
ment and the other angwer--and she is here to be examined, &nd they are

as under oath.




MR, WHEELFR: You say, Miss Schmidt, at one plagce here

that you attended & meeting on Janusry 9, 1948, I believe, and you

went apparently with the purpose of seeing what discussion there
would be sbout the listing by the Attorney General, but you don't
elucidate on that at all, You don't sey there wes & discussion ad
that time and if so— 1I'd 1like to know if there was such & discuseion,
MISS SCHMIDT: I didg't elaborate on that because I didn'g
remcmber too clearly the discussion whieh took place. I worked the
lantern slides. I wvap satisfied they had answered zny questions I had
in my mind. I don't remember well enough
discussion,
MR, WHUELER: On page 1l of your statement, you say thats
"After the Bookshop listing was published, I naturally
re-gxamined in my mind my brief experience on the Bosrd of
Trustees of the Bookshop. I was unable to reesll any inci-
dents of undemocratie procedures.”
Does that mean you were unable to reeall any ineidents of nything
undemocratic--not only procecdures, but saything? VWill you elaborate?
MISS SCEMIDTy I am not suré thet I understand what you mean
by "anything®,
MR. WHEELERs Procedure--s circumstonce--is cnything,
MISS 3CEMIDT: T am unable te recall sny instance of an

undemocratic naturs, or any effort to impose a Compunist line upon

Bookshop menmbers,




MR, VHEELER; There was nothing in the Bookshop member-
ship, as you recall it, that had any commmnistic tinge to 1t? It
is one thing to impoge & line-- Do you mean that as narrovly as
gtated, or do you want to elaborate on it?

MISS SCEMIDTs I was not aware of any effort of my body
to impose their line or any particular way of thinking or doing
things on the board. fverything was always discussed at gront
lengths. People were given an opportunity to express thelir opl
0o agree or Gisagrese, and matters were always discussed openly. Does
thet answer your question?

MR, WHEELER: Well, in part.

MISS SCHMIDT: There was no person on the board I had any
reason to believe wos a Communist.

MR, WHEELERs This thing goes furtnher than thate- One may
believe in Communism, I suppose, without being & Cormunist or & member
of the Communist Party--but in your discussions, were they discussions
of & commmistic character?

MISS SCHMIDTs VYhat do you mean by Comumunis haracter?

MR, WHEELERs I believe you imow, Miss Schmidt, what I mean

by that, The Bookshop was charged with being subversive in a communistic

CHAIRMANg Yes, the determination by the Attorney General

in 1947 listed the Bookshop a8 & Communist organization,




R, VHEZELERs What I'G like to know, ware these meeting@e-
regardless of how democratic the procedures, regardless of anybody
trying to impose & line on anybody clse or that you didn't kmow anybody
vas & Compunist or & Cosmunist Party member--regardless of all this,
were there discussions of & communistie character or were they dls-
cussions of & cultursl nature &8 the statement seems to indicate?

Your interpretation is not broad emough, Does your statement that

you didn't knov of enybedy who was a Communlst also mean that you
dldn't know of anybody who seemed to believe in Cosmunism? Then this
statement to the effect that there were no dlseu yaions on the board

while vou were there to get people believe in ihe

1
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138 SCHMIDT: The board was concerned with
of the store--with books to be bought, and could we
read books. The Bookshop was running at a deflelt, so
roblem of whether to have
ings; or, for interracial
Negroes and whites could mee member at one of our mestings, 1
for the cafetaria workers.
mite interesting. That wes the only
ciscussed.
VHEELERS You were concerned with the finencial ends of

profit and losg; you discussed what books to get, what not to get &8

& matter of posslble profit to the bookshop or some cultural advantage.




You wented to improve the Bookshop. Did you over discuss whether

or not you should continue to have The New Masses as one of the items?
MISS SCHMIDTs I don't recall that. We ware conterned more

vith best sellers--becsuse people coming in dida't have e OU Fhee

MR. WHEELFRs There was never a discussion of Communist

literature as an item which would be of profit to the Bookshop?

M1SS SCHMIDT: I don't recall such cliscussiong while I
was on the board,

MR, VHEZLPR: As & member of the board, did you think you
vere in the inner cirele of the Bookshop Assoclation, or was there
some overriding group that you dldn't have access | fter all, this
group has been listed as subvarsive,

rore one of the officers.
was some cirecle of offlcers in the

MISS SCHMIDT:
nember of the board,

MR, WHEEZLFRS
inner cirele or elique?

MIS3 SCHMIDTs From the manner in which the disecussions took

there, I wouldn!t assume there was Bny inner circle at th

the board. I had no indication that there was any meh cligue.

MR, WHEELER: You saw nothing subversive, or nothing thet, in
your view, would cause the queatlon of mubversiveness to arise? It

didn't arise in your view?




MISS SCHMILT: I didn't see anything 1ike that, I didn't

MR, VHEELER: It didn't cccur to you that there mizht be
gn inner cirele?

MISS SCHMIDTy I guess it didn't,

MR, WHEELE think that some of your answers, teking

them gsentence by sentence, some of your answers zre narrow. I think
that a little elucidation of them might ¢ . better picture of
what you seem to be trying to say. For
didn't see any undemoeratic procedures,
nerrov statements., 1 do not know
they be that narrow, or that you
nything subverasive
MISS SCHMIDT:
anything subversive in the Bookshop.
MR. “HEELERs There was nothing in th ctivitias of t)
Bookshop thet you construed to be of a communistic neture?
MISS SCHMIDT:; I thought I had been cuite cles:
in my first statements. T thought I was very broad in
ment.
MR, W“HEELER: I rezd these statements very carefully. I

thought they were ccuched in narrov gentences., The snswer isn't as




broad as the guestion. I have been trying to have you clarify,
elucidate, or sxplain vhat I consldeér teo be narrow stutements, You
novw say you saw nothling of a comrunistic charecter., There was a
forum on atomic energy and various other forums, Were thore periods
orumg when there were dqueptions and ansvers?
3 SCAMIDT: Oh, yes, air.
JHEELERg: Vers these cuestions
1@ subject of the discusal Yus re any ciscuse
reive nature,

SCHMIDTs Are you

enargy |

SCHMIDT

Are you seying

nmbversive or compunistic character
riod that you don't remember?

MISS SCHMIITs No, I don't remsmber sny questions,

had been any cuestions at the time that I had been suspicious about,

I probably wouldn't have made x blanket staotement,




MR. VHEELER: I want to know whether or not {t wag in

faet subversive or commnistie, not what Jou mey have been suspieious
ofy I don't Imow vhet the background of vour suspicions would be,
Do you understand what I em asking?

MISS SCHMIDTs Wo, I

MR, VHEELER: T took the atomic energy forum or an example,
A8 to the matier of conducting = forum, there was an address by some
Bpeaker on some subject?

MISS GCHMIDT: That

MR, WHEELERs Vere these nddreszes c cemrunistic or sub-
versice nature or character? Were any of the cusstions =nd ansvers
in these forumg following the address of & comunistic or subversive
character?

MISS SCHMIDT: I don't reeall

MR, VHEECLERs Would vou reeall

CHMIDTs T think I would

question and answer peri.ds people ask snything.

MR. WHEELERg I sm interested in--did the;
questions and ansvers which would add a commumistie tin

MISS SCHMIIT: Not to my knovledge.

MR, WHEELER; That 13 a eatesge

After the listing of the organisation as subversive by the

Attornay General under the Executive erder, you examined in your mind




that faet and you deeided that you would contlimue o be anetive in
the Bookshop or at lesst contlnue your econnection vith the Bookshop.
Is that right?

MISS SBCHMIITs I decided I would mot resign, yes, ir,

MR, WHEZLER: Now you say your recson {for doing that was
that the Bookshop had asked for & heaping and you thought the facts
would come -ut at the hearing, The hearing nover cccur
there anything of defiance in that? Pid you have
defisnce against the best interests of the United

MISS SCHMILT: Certainly not.

Re I guess that is sll.

CHAIRMAN: Mrs. Maulding?

MRS, MAULDING: I have two or three 1tems.
your ansver you states

"In July, I declined to be noml

to the Board of Trustees because I fe
wvant to devote sny more of my time 1

And on page 11 you stated

"On the other hand, I did not
in Bookshop business after sublication of
though this was aectuslly merely & continuation of
resolve that I haé earlisr made in July 1947,
declded not to devote any more of my time to Bookshop
business end declined to be nominated for election to
the Board of Trustees.”

T Ve

MISS SCHMIDTs Well, as I remember, I had served on the
board, and I had been moderately interested in vhat had been going on,

but I had no particular friend on the boards I Just—-
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MRS, MAULDINGs VWas it lack of interest that caused you to

decide that you dida't want to sSpend any more time on the board?

MISS SCHMIDTs I just didn't want to spend any more time,

MAULDIRGs Hot because of any inecident or happening?

SCHMIITs Oh, no—— No.

MRS, MAULDINGs Would you tell us to what other organizse

tions you belong?
& liste= the Washington Assoeclation

&

MISS SCHMIDTs I have
of Seientists, Geclopgical Soelety of Weshington, Peleoniologlonl So-
ciety of % aleontologlsts and Minerole
oglats (EEE an Reglstry of X-Rey Technlcians,
Chest, Blue Cross, and Sigma X1,

MIULDING: That is a complete list?

FEN W |

Community

iy
adbid @
SCHMIDTs That is all that comes to my minc

MRS. MAULDIRG: Were you & frecuent reader of The N

yoursalf?
MISS SCHMIDT: I don't remember evar buying it. I msy have

glunced at it.

MRS, MAULDINGs

Chany

I have no more questions,.

to question the witness

CHAIRMAN: Mr, Cobb, do you wish

further?

MR, COBBs Did 1t ever ccour to you that The New Masces

might be sold in Washington only at the Washington Bookshop?

MISS CHMIDTs Oh, no.




MR, COBBy Did it ever ocour to you that it was peculiar
that The New Masses appeared on the shelves of the Bookshop?

MISS SCHMIDT: No.

MR, COBB: Would you say thet the Bookshop was distinet
from Brentzno's or other bookstores, and that it carried more

literature of politiecal and roelal types than other bookshops did?

MISS SCHMIDT: I had never so observed that it did.

MR, COBBy Was there anything characteristic about the
display of books &8 between the Beokshop ond Brentano's?

MISS SCHMIDT: The display at the Bookshop W
pratentious.

MR, COBB: Was there any other distinction in your mind?

MISS SCEMIDTs I don't know vhether Brentano hes magazines

COBB: Would you say that the
emphasis in terms of 1ts display of books which were not isplayed
in Brentano's or in other book stores?
MISS SCHMIDT: (Long pause) I am afrald my main impressic
{3 that the Bookshop did net displey them very well. 1 don't think
1% had a8 good & selling display, I think you are trying to ask me
if there were any types of books displeyed at the Bookshop more than

at the others. There were more liberal books at the Bookshop than




there were at Brentano's. I can best 1llustretes there might be

two histories or two biographles of two different people, a liberal
perpon and a person not & liberal. Well, the Bogkshep would fesature
the liberal history or the blography of the liberal person. That
would be the best I could do in answer to your question,

MR. COBBs 8o you would say that the Bookshop did indicate
gsome emphasis in its eholce of books?

MISE SCHMIDTy It had more lnterracial books than I would
potice in other stores--bocks devoted to the history of the Negro,

MR, COBBg 8o thet there was some distinetion in the display
of books &t the Bookshop and at Brenteno'. What shat dlstinetion was,
vhat the Bookshop was trying to do that Brentano was not doinges

CHAIRMANY I think that would not be pertinent. Ve =re not
revieving the corrsctness of the Attormey General's eeticn in listing
the Book Shop &8s a Commnist organisation,

MISS SCHMIDTs I would sesy they slanted thelr selections
toward the liberal side, toward the interracial side, I think that
pretiy mch ansvers your guestion.

MR, VHEELER: They didn't slant toward the Comrunist side

in your opinion?

MISS SCHMIDT: No.
MR.. COBBg Ifd like to put into the record the feet that
you wrote in Aprdl 1948 a letter of criticism to the Bookshop.

MISS SCHMIDTs Yes, sir,
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MR, COBBs I think you might indieste why you wrote this
letter, which I will read,
MISS SCHMILTs; I think the letter itself stotes why I wrote
I think it ves because I went to thia talk by Mr, Bulterly and
ouite bothared bacause there wes not aven a chalrman th Pt £ |
bothered me, bacause 1 proved of
Hegroes could
That was the inspira for the letter.
board will receive the copy of
it will be attached

»

You may now resd

(Mr. Cobb reads,)

TESTIMONY OF MARIE SIECGRIST
(Miss Siegrist was sworn s a witness by the Chairman,)
CHAIRMANg #ill you be geated? Please glve your nane,
address, and oecupation to the reporter.
MISS SIECRISTs My name is Merie Siegrist. My address 1s

1431 Iris Street, N.W., Washington, D. C, I am & geologist biblio-

grapher, employed by the Geological Soclety of America,

CHAIRMANS Mr, Cobb, you may question the witness.




MR, COBBy Miss Siegrist, will you first tell the board

what your association with Migs Schmidt is,

MISS SIEGRIST: I met Ruth Schmidt eerly in 1943 vhen she

first came to the Military Geology Unit in the Ueologiesl Survey, and
the custom was to introduce any newcomer. So I presume I have known
ner from that moment, During the course of our work, I had dinner a
great many times with her and came to know her. Because of her
interest in literature and musie, malnly music, because here
someone who had not been exposed to chamber musle an
hobby, It wés on that basis that I haé socisl contacts witl
We went together to the Library of Congress concerts. Also,

great deale ¥Ye had many talks in the cocurse

the same unit.

MR, COBB: Has that asssociation continued o tha present time?

MISS SIEGRISTs I left Militsry Geology and went back to my
Jobe But the soeclel sspects have continued to the present,

see Futh at concerts, and we still have supper or lunch to-

MR. COBBs Did you st one time hold a position in the
Washington Book Shop?
MISS SITGRISTs Yes, I was on the board for seversl years,
MR, COBBs Were you on the board or connected with the board
at the time when Ruth Schmidt was seolaected ag a bhoard member?

MISS BIEGRIST: Yes.




COBBs  What was your position at that
88 BSIECRIST:  When was this?
MR, COBBs This was in April 1947,
MISS SIEGRIST: I wae secretary that year.

MR, COBBg You recall Ruth Schmidt being a mem!

vacanay on the board sanc
MR, COBBt Do you heve
she was invited to f1ll that vacancy?
MISS SIEGRIST: Vell, yes
3chmidt had taken ch
very competent

Fomeone BUgy:

don't remember who suggested her for the board, btut

& good suggestion und apparently the board did, teo,
to £111 this wveoancy. But as I recsll it, that w
the period snd conual eoleetions eame up in July.
wish to run a8 a candidate for the board.
MR, COBB3 Do you reeall any of the actlvities Miss Schmicdt
undertoock for the Bocokshop?
MISS SIECRISTS It was in connection with forums that she

participated to some extent, but ectually I just recall thnt one
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meeting when zhe attended to all the detalls, and then she Intro-

duced the spesker once., He was an architect, end spoke on archi-

tectural designing--a Mr, Butterly. She introduced the specker, Mt

that is 211 T recall. I had very littls to do with the specific
details of this meeting.
MR, COBBs Did you attend

Were you her nearest friend and ass

t'.?“ 0

L

and wve had been frionds

MR, COBBy Do you recall
tivities?

86 SIEGRISTs 1 think 1t wes

meetings in vhich she acted as board

MR, COBB: Could you reecsall
activity prior to the time when the Bookshop was listed in December 19471

MISS SIRGRISTs Oh, ves, that would have beem in June or July
that she vae no lomger on the board, and after thst I don't remember eny
activity.

MR, COBB: Do you recollect any discnssions with Mi Schmidt

the problem of the listing of the Bookshop?

MISS SIEGRIST: No, I don't recall specifically,




MR, COBBt GSome people, of course, would discuss it. You

didn't discuss that with her?
MISS SIEGRIST: I think
CHAIRMAN: 1In other words, the
MR, COBB: Miss Slegrist, do you

attonded the meetings whioch

hout gaining any impress

SIEGRIST: Oh, c
was conducted alon
ny meeting
would indicate th:
as any paliticsl con

CHAIRMAN S
CHAIRMANG Mrs, Maulding?
MAULDINGs I have none.

AN You are excused,

TESTIMONY OF

(Miss Berdan was sworn as & witness by the Chaiprman,)

CHAIRMAN: Give the roporter your name, address, snd occu-

pation,




MISS BIRDANS My name 1s Jean M, Ferdan, 2020 @ atraet, N.V,,

Washingten, D, C, I am a geologlet, employed by the U, S, Geological
Survey.

MR, COBBY First state your sssoelation with Miss Schmidts
‘hem you first met her and what apgsoclations you have had with h r
since that tims,

BERDANG I hawve made
in 1943, around March,
+ until T left Washingtom to go

Since that time

Also New York,
HDANS Also New Tork.
in October 1947 for about two deys, vhen I came doim to the
Hammey show they had here, In 1948 I came down egain for the Plek
and Haomer show, /In March of thet year she visited me on Cape Cod
for about five days and on Labor lny over the week end, In 1949 I
came back down to Washingtom. I hsd been M WeheEey finishing my

dissertation for the doctor's degree at Iale, but I came back to work

hore and we resumed our friendshi p down hevre,




MR, COBBt What would you say of Miss Schmidt's loyalty

form of Government?

MISS BERDAN: In the course of ourp friendship
& good many dlscussions about ene thing
always had & tendency to chempion the underdog,

strong the & 20t of the rece guestion

Dusiness versus

known & numbsr of sarlor

53 4 anl 0% o
S1NK e ol e

commmistic 1
ny connection with the Communist
question,
you aware that you sver discussed Comrunism
or the Communist Party with Higs Schmidt?
MISS DERDAN: Yes, I believe we did. And definitely she said
nothing in faver of it. I meen we were sgreed on that, I can't pin

down any dates on such discussions, becsuse they continued over a period

of years,




MR, COBBs Did these discussions antedste the Government

loyalty program?

MISS BERDANg Vhen did the loyalty program atart?

CHAIRMANY There were two Executive orders; one wag issuad
in 1943, and then the wregent loyalty program began in 1947,

MR, COBBs Thege discussicns of Comrnnism antedated the

MISS BPERDANY Maybe thoreé had been discussions prior to 1947,

I knew her pretty well ing the war, snd ve

"“,"

3

had three-cornered discu:
MR, COBRs nase causes that Miszs 8 at would champlonee
dld you sver notice that she sdvocated any labor cause interracial
causes--did she carry with that an sdvoos
I cannot ssy perticul
3W DO W
Bconcmie coauses? Sociallsm?

DANS No, I would say thet there was tendency
against control by any large groups We wére egainst too much Covern=
ment contrel, as in Socialism,

HRe COBBs Are there any other causes that you can specifically
identify?
5% BERDAN: VWell, she was interested in this poll tex
business, but that would be part of the same thing, in & way. I don't

think of any at the moment.




HR, COBHs Are you confident that she has been completely
frank vith you end open in her discussions?

MIS3 BfRDAH: I would sey pos 'Of course, 1 can't be sure
of that,

CHAIRMAN: Mr's Whesler?

MR, WHEELERs = Miss Berdan, you said that you eouldn't

recall any intersst on the part of Miss Sehmidt in the Communist

Party. Do you likevige anpwer the ssme in regard to Communien?
MISS BERDANS Yes, sir. I thought I had wore or less

coyered that in relation to thé socfalism or economie angle,
CHAIRMANS Mra. Maulding?

MRS, MAULDINGS I have no questions.

TESTIMONY OF ALFRED J. PODENLOS
Jodenlos svOrm 48 & witness by the Cheirman,)
CHATRMANS - Plecse be seated, snd give vour name, address,
and oecupation to the reporter.
MRe BODENLOBg  Alfred J. Bodenlos, 1812 K itreat, H.¥,,
#eshington, D. C., geologist.
CHATRMANS VWho is your employer?

MR, BODENLOSt U. 5. Geological Jurvey.




MR, COBBg First state what your assoclatlon has been

Schmidt.

MR, BODENLOSt I met Miss Schmidt in Graduste School,
Columbia Dniversity, Janusry 1940--Jonuary 1940 to June 1942, 1
got to kmow her moderately well, inasmuch 28 ve ware taking the
same eourses, sevaral field trips, writing reports on couparable
subjects, and in the spring of 1942 we both studled for o
orals. I joined the Geological Survey

{rst to Massachusetts, then to
to Washington in June 1944. In t
tained employment in the G ologlesl Su y When I retu: Lo
Washington in 19 gsaw her in the evenlng y and connecs
1th the work. I was in Vashington until June
uth Ameriea, returning in 1946. From 1946
I returned to

saven months and was there until about Aoril 1948,

lovalty to the Government,

MR, COBB: Is it your opinion thet Miss Schmidt is come

~letely loysl to our capitalist, democratic form of Government?

"

MR, BODENLOS: I would say, yes.




MR. COBBs  Would you state your reasons for that convice

MR, BODENLOS: %Vell, during this time, I think I reczll

having diseussed politicel issues with Miss Schmidt on a number of

ocoasiona. I think both of us are more or less interested in publie

affeirss A1l through this l0-year period, I can't recsll the

slighteat intimation of inything she said in any of these discussior 8,

which covered many issues, that there wus the slightest indication

that she had ny feeling that our system

discussion ve had on politles—-us I reoccll,

over, I believe in July year, for din

polities and other issues briefly. I think
no cdifferent thun those you would find exXpres
one side or another,
MR. COBB: How would you characterize her vievs?
istinetions among our newspapars.
MR, BODENLOSs I feel that her views did not
those that I had seen in the press of this country.
MR
directly related to Communism or the Communist Party 1ine? Did you have
any direct evidencs of her attitude towsrds either Commmism or the

Wi L O

Communist Party line?

l« COBBg Have you ever had occasion to ciscuss any problem that



MR, BODINLOS: I vaguely recall thet we mey have touched

on the subjeet in July., If we did, I don't reecll her having seid

anything that would indlcate that she had any tendeney or leening

toward Communism, Probably it vas more or less theoretical ideas on
Compunism and, as I recall, ve both agreed it was complately unvorkable.

M3, COBBs Are you confident that Miss Schmidt 1s & thor-
oughly honest and open person--& frank person?

MR. BODENLOS: In all ways. 4o far as I know, she hes
alvays been completsly frank and honest, She has been part of the
group with vhioh I assoglete, sanc bacause of that we, groups of us,
would spend evenings together doing verious things around washington.
Weld arrange parties, and ae far as I imow,
general sceisl life goes, I have never found
suspicion in any way in Migs Schmidt.

CHAIRMANg Mr. Wheeler, do you ha

-

MR, VHEFLER: Did Miss Schmidt
Washington Book Shop Assoclation?
MR. BODENIOS: WNo. I vaguely remembe
a book came out several vears ago of some interest
the Gaologieal Survey by a Professor at Yale, "Meeting of

T beliasve the thesls of that book is that there has to be @

of the civilizations of east and west in order to build a stable world




in the future, At that time, quite & group of pgeologists were read-
ing the book and Miss Schmidt, I reeall, said if I wanted a copy she
could get it for me at a reduction, I didn't know how she would get
& copy. I didn't know she belonged to the Bookshop,

CHATRMAN: Any questions, Mrs., Maulding?

MRS, MAULDINGs I have no questions.

CHAIRMANS I have no questions. Thank you.

TESTIMORY QF FRANK C. WHITMORE, JR.

(Mr. Whitmore sworn &s & witness by the Chairman,)

CHAIRMANS Plesse 8it down and glve the reporter your name,

and occupation,

MR, WHITMOREs Frank C, Whitmore, Jr., 2020 Peabody Strost,
feat Hyattsville, Maryland, gsologist.

CHAIRMANg Who is your employer?

MR, VHITMOREs U. 5. Geologiecal Survey.

COBBs ¥ill you first tell the board how long you have
known Miss Schmidt?

Mi, WVHITMORE: I have !mow Miss Schmidt since March 1944,
vhen I came to work for the Geologleal Survey. Ve were assoclated
from that time until the summer of 1945 as members of the Military
Geology Unit, in which we worked together. Then there was & gap in

our acquaintance when I wap oversess, VWhen I came back in the fall




of 1946, I was here only coecasionally until May 1948 or the summer

of 1948,
Survey. Then in 1948 she came
of which I was then in charge,

her supervisor, though not hep
P ) 2

the Military Ceology Branch in 1950,

her only
contacts.,
COBB;

hopesty and integrity?

She was assigned during that time to

back to ti

iceasionally in & soclal way

Do you feel you could ful

will you sts

another branch of the

@ Military Geology Branch
A, ’

&8 I still afly &8N0 theref

immediste superviser, unti

Since that time, I have geen

end occasional professional

a4 ’
lly {udee
o Rt

te your opinion of he

her attitude toward our form of government?

MH, WHITMOREj

loyalty to the United States.
MiR. COBBjs
government?

MR, WHITMORE:

0¥

government. She has evinced that in her

knowa her.

I have no doubt whatsoever as ¢

And her attitude toward th

I feel that

I have never detected in any

ichmidt's

TYPn
SL188

e Communist form of
she 1g loyal to ocur form of
attitude ever since I have

way the sort of political

attitude or politicsl statements or utterances of vhat I take to be

the Communist Party line or any cther party line.

That leads me to

this oconclusion thaet she is s loyal person,

MR, COBBj

issues with Mise Sehmidt?

Do you reeall any diseussion of any political




MR, VAITMOREs ' Ho, I don't recall that I have, We have
discussed various issues of the day at various times, I would eay
we have never had politicel discussionse-perhaps a few passing words,.
My discussions with Miss Schmidt ware largely discussions of matters
professicnal or matters hinging on the professional, such as persone
alities in the fleld of geology, and discussions as to various matters
that were going on in that fleld; or, to some extent, literature,
plays, or somthing of that sort.

MR« COBBs VWould you classify Miss Schmidt as s conservae

liberal, or any such?

MR, VHITMORE:F I would classify Miss Schmidt as

strong feelinga about certzin seclologieal
the day, would say tha see eye to eye
her vievs, for instance, on raecisl equality.
she 1s such a pesrson who would perhaps be more a stating her
opinicns on such things then many of us who tak
attitude, which I think is more common in this country. Many of us
are in favor of racial equality but perhaps never do anything about

it except say we are. I would say Miss Schmidt 1s liberal and more

active than many other liberals, though I don't know that she hag been

& crusadey in any particular cause,

MR, COBBs Do you recall any ocsuses in which she has dige

pleyed partioular interest?




i, WHITMOREs No, I would suy I don't, My impression
that she is of & 1liberal turn of mind and one who 1se-well, to
use & hackneyed phrase, in favor of enybody who is downtrodden.

She is likely to be indignant vhen she sees anybody who seems to be

getting less than his due in & country where everyone is supposed to

get equal trestment like unyons else,
MR, COBBy What do you think is her interest in socialism or
our economic system?
MR, WVHITMORE3 HNo--llo, I have had no evidence on her
of dissatisfaction with our economie system, I don't b
any such dissatisfection, or advocates any radiesl ch
government of the United States.
COBBg Tou recall the oceasion
Atomie Energy Commissio Will you give %
Misa Sehmidt had
throughout
var and was cleared by the U. S. Army for access to materd
to and Including top secr=t. OShe was, after
Paleontological and Stratigraphy Branch of the
regearch in that field, which 18 not subject
hem we asked that she return to the Military Geology Branch

o

chief of our editorial group.




During late 1949, we were asked To handle a classified

project which required that those people engaged in it be cleared
by the Atomie Energy Commission. Therefore, the employees concerned
were asked to sutmit clearance papers, The papers were gent through
the Seeurity Officer of the Geologlcal Survey, ho always screens
them before they go to the Atomie Energy Commissic and the Security
officer informed me that the record
the Washington Book

shington Book Shop

shington

4 .~
0D

I wished roceed

1" C+ R T
- W

4 only in the case of extremely key persons would the
Survey insist upon the full investigation necessary for AEC clearunce.
I was told that Miss Schmldt's was not solated There were
several cases in the Geological Survey vwhers, because Ol association
or memberships such as this, a question would be raiged by the Atomle
Energy Commission, and the Geological Survey didn't feel justified in
insisting on clearance or investigation but rather preferred %0 transler

such & person to other work. I regard that as a matter of security

practice end not as sny roflection on Miss Schmidt's loyalty.




MR, COBBt You discussed this metter with Miss Schm at?
MR, “HITMORE: I discussed the matter with Miss Schmidt
at the time,

WBBs Did she indlcate eny

7

this change?

MR, VHITMORE: Mies Schmidt's
that becouse of the prineipls lavolved
an investigation so that h
might reflect on her, I advi
is & professional peologlet.
would ma
opinion that if ghe
to vhatever investi; icns and
might perhaps horself professionally by gaini
reputation ap one who would raise
crusader, In this case, I felt th
good in the light of current practice, and might do her ham,
MR. COBBs I am trying to get her attitude, not your
attitude.
CHAIRMANS Any questions, Mr. Vheeloer?
MR, WVHEELERs Did Miss Schmidt ever talk to you about the

Washington Book Shop?




MR, YHITMOREs No, not until--not until our discussiona after
the request for AEC clearance.
CHAIRMANS Any questions, Mrs, Msulding?

MRS, MAULDINGt No, I have none.

CHAIRMANG I have none. Thank you,

TESTIMONY OF MARJORIE HOOKER
(Miss Hookser was sworn as & witness by the Chairman.

CHAIRMANS Please be sesteds Will you glve the I porter
your name, addrass, ané cccupation?

MISS HOOKRs My name i@ Marjorie Hooker. My adcreas is
McLean, Virginia, I am a geologlst with the U. U, G ologicel Survey.

CHAIRMAN: Mr. Cobd, you may proceeds
MR, COBB: Miss Hooker, will you first tell the board wh
you first came to lmow Miss Schmidt and what your gsociations have
been?

MISS HOOKFRs 1 first knew Puth Schmidt in the fall of 1938,

when she eame to Columbia to start her graduste work in geologye I
vig st thet tlme an sssistant to Paul Kerr, professor of minerology
at Columbla, I had finished my course work at the time and was not
taking say course with her, HNot many girls teks geology, so0 I was
with her cuite a blt and we became close friends, In faect, I have

visited with hor parents at thelr home in Brooklym, and she has vislted




with my pareats in Flushing, In June 1939 she vigited me in northern

Vermont, vhere I am a summer residents After ending her vork at

Columbia, che came %o VWashington in February 1943. I came here in

ke 1/

June 1943, and we have contlinued our friendship from that time up to

MR. COBBs - Do yo
over

-

MR, COBBs
ur Government?
HOOK:Rs I think she ip a rfectly loyal, upstanding
ho would never tolerate anything contrary to the
rkings of our American form of Government,
What, speeifiecally, do you base that Judgment on?
I haye, to the best of my kmowlesdpge~~1 csnnot
has sald anything or done snything that I
vould ecnsider disloyal to our Covernment, contrary to its :ims und
purposes, I think she hes always shown in her work, thought and deed
that she is ready to uphold the Govermment at any time, OShe is fully
agresable to the type of government that we have and she is certainly

not agreéasble to any form of Communism or communistic government.




ME, COBBs What do you know of the type of causes she
is interested in?

MISS HOOKERs I think she | ne normal interest of the
average Ameriean citizen who is interested in thelr community and
our eleéeetions and conditions as they arise, I know that she has
been living in Virginis since she came to Washington but
maintained & voting residence in New Tork. I know too
ghown an Interest in Virginia nolities,
body living in Arlington would
tax in Virginia. Some of us believe in

requisite for voting in Virginia,
payment of the poll tax wo

voting in Virginia.

MR, COBBs I am trying to got, Miss Hooker, the
your judgment., Was Miss Schmidt fighting the poll tsx?
CHATRMAN: Let's not get too far sfleld, I don't imagine
Hooker would know the detalls of Mise Schmidt's controversy with
the State of Virginia over the poll tax, exeept by hearsay.

n

MRs COBBs There is a great deal hearsay already before
t.“e 1)0!'-1‘(.5..

MISS HOOKERs Although she opposed the prineipls, vhen the

situation was explained to her, what the poll tax was used for and

how distributed, used for schools, =te., she has pald the poll tax
regularly since., This shows, I think, that she 1s certainly in line

with the alms of the Government and is not & radiecal.

54




Are you aware of Mies Schmidt's attituda toward

interracial ocuestion?

Yo g o

HLO0 lh'.).{\ F’ I

CONB:
socinlist aysten

LRy No, I

CHAIRMANS Any questions, Mr,
MR, VHEELERy Has Miss Schmidt

vshington Book 3hop?

MI3S HOOKZRs At one time I think she mentioned her nmembership

in it, but she has never diascussed the coperations or anything like that,

MR, WHEZLER: Did she ever ask you to join 4t?

MISS HOOKERg No, I have naver been asked to join,

3%




CHAIRMAN: Any questions, Mre. Mouldi
MRS, MAULDINGY No.

CHAIRMANs I have nome, Thank you very much,

CHAIRMAN: (Turning to Mr. Cobd)
vitnesses?
Mi, COBBs

CHATRMANg

CHAIRMAN: T
in due time and
entire record
then make its determination, If
Schmidt, the case, in sccordance
be referred Lo the Loyalty

approved by that board, Miss Schmidt will

favorable ccnelusion of the case f the determinat is unfavorable,

v idda

then this board will immeciately notify Miss Schmidt, and she will

have the privilege of taking an eppeal to the Loyalty Review Board,

You may submit suggestions for any corrections that sesm appropriate

to you at the time when you receive a copy of the transeript.

The hearing will now be closed.




(Chairman reopens hearing so that Miss Schmidt may meke a
request stating where her copy of the transeript will be
sent.)

MISS SCHMIDT: I request that the proceedings be sent

direetly to mes Miss Ruth Anna Marie Sehmidt, C/o Cobb and

Welssbrodt, 1822 Jefferson Place, N.W,, Washington 6, D, C,

(The hearing wes closed at 12:50 p.m.)

(Sgd.) Grace L. Dent
Reporter,




